1978

## Denise R. Gramme v. Andre Gramme : Brief of Defendant-Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF CASE

Plaintiff, Denise R. Gramme, filed an action in divorce. Defendant, Andre Gramme, answered and counter-claimed.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Trial Court found that the plaintiff was entitled to a divorce against the Defendant and awarded the Defendant a divorce against the plaintiff on the Counterclaim. The Trial Court awarded the plaintiff real and personal property having a value in excess of \$200,000.00, assessed attorney's fees of \$8,000.00, awarded costs, and required the Defendant to pay, as permanent alimony, the sum of \$1,400.00 per month.



## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Defendant-Appellant asks the Court to eliminate or reduce the provision for alimony, to modify the property award, and to require that the Plaintiff-Respondent pay, from her substantial estate, her own attorney's fees and costs. The Defendant requests that the home in Carmel, California, be sold and that the proceeds be placed in trust and professionally managed for the plaintiff.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

While the Court on this appeal may review the law and the facts, the defendant has divided the statement of facts in three parts, the last of which is entirely financial. The first section concerns the testimony of the plaintiff, Denise R. Gramme, insofar as it is germane to the issues raised by the defendant on appeal. The facts contained there are not in dispute. In that section, the defendant has included, for ease of reference, however, the third party testimony of Dean R. Callister, the arson investigator of the Salt Lake City Fire Department. The second section includes the testimony of the defendant, Andre Gramme.

### Testimony, Denise R. Gramme

The plaintiff had six years of elementary school in Belgium and three years of high school for a total of nine years formal education (R. 173). Her employment

prior to her marriage was with her father, in the potato business, also in Belgium, where she worked sporadically sometimes "all the week" and sometimes not at all. She learned, she said, to buy potatoes and groceries, to bag, carry and deliver potatoes (R. 174).

The parties were married in 1946 and the plaintiff became immediately pregnant with their only child, Arlette Gramme Rukavina. The Plaintiff was not employed until 1949, when, after emigrating to America, she commenced employment with the Hotel Utah (R. 175), after which she held a number of different jobs. Her last employment was with L. G. Balfour and was for "close to a year" or "maybe more" (R. 176). She was working for Balfour in 1966 (R. 177).

Everything, the plaintiff testified, was perfect, between she and the defendant, until he established a relationship with one Sharon Morecraft in the latter part of September 1975 (R. 167-168). The Plaintiff was, prior to that time, "everything" to the Defendant, she said. He was never ashamed of her, took her out all the time, spoiled her and dressed and treated her beautifully (R. 163-164). She had, however, she admitted, been hospitalized between January 15, 1969, and September 4, 1975, twelve times. The records show that the enrollments were frequently for psychological rather than physical reasons (Exhibit 37-D).

The Plaintiff had a mastectomy in 1969, for a malignant tumor and her left breast was removed (R. 220). Her medical problem was equivalent to that of Mrs. Jake Galt, Happy Rockefeller and Betty Ford (R. 215). The Plaintiff later requested the removal of her right breast. There was, when it was removed, no hint of malignancy. The Plaintiff has never had chemotherapy, or radiation, or any medication related to the treatment of cancer. No doctor has presently advised her that she suffers from cancer (R. 221), or has in the nine years since 1969 (R. 222). She is under no current course of treatment for the disease. The Plaintiff had a hysterectomy early in her married life and has had a bladder problem.

The Plaintiff, prior to the trial, had had household help for ten or twelve years taking care of one half of a duplex at 692 Cortez Street in Salt Lake City, Utah, where she was home, basically all of the time (R. 214). The duplex on Cortez Street in which the parties lived from 1953 to late 1975, and where the Defendant continues to reside, cost less than \$10,000.00 to build and the companion unit rented for \$85.00 a month (R. 169). In 1975, the parties purchased an expensive home in Carmel, California.

The Plaintiff, during the period of her married life, had fainting episodes, which sometimes resembled

convulsions. The fainting spells preceded, by a considerable period, the surgery for the removal of the left breast, and there were many such incidents (R. 182-183). Mrs. Gramme did not know how many times she had passed out during the marriage, whether forty-five or fifty, to which she had admitted earlier, or four or five hundred times. She knew, however, that it was "many, many, many times" both before and after her admission for the removal of her left breast on January 15, 1969 (R. 183). Such seizures never occurred while she was operating an appliance. Once, she said, one occurred while she was operating a motor vehicle and twice, she said, they occurred in a public place (R. 184-185). She was never admitted to any hospital for injuries sustained as a result of such circumstances. During the trial, she appeared, on one occasion, to fall around the witness box and to the floor (R. 281).

The plaintiff testified that there was a fire at her home on July 4, 1972, and another that preceded it (R. 188-189). Yet a third fire involved a 1970 Pontiac owned by the parties and was caused by arson (R. 192). A fourth fire at the Gramme residence involved a boat owned by the plaintiff's father which was stored in the carport at the plaintiff's home while the father was in Europe. It burned the boat, damaged a camper, a truck and the carport (See Exhibits 47-D to 50-D) and caused extensive damage (R. 195).

The Plaintiff admitted that a neighbor girl had accused her of setting a fire, claiming to be an eyewitness (R. 197). She indicated that the witnesses name was Yare Knolte (R. 198), and that, later, the Knolte home caught on fire (R. 199). Mrs. Gramme, in connection with the accusation, spoke to the "fire chief" at his office but testified, at first (R. 201-202), that it was not the Fire Department, but the Defendant who required her to see a psychiatrist (R. 201). She denied she was ever asked to take a lie detector test concerning these events, and then hedged (R. 202).

Dean P. Callister, a Lieutenant in the Salt Lake City Fire Department, the fire arson investigator, testified from Fire Department records (R. 483), that he was familiar with the parties and had been called to their home at 692 Cortez Street to investigate fires on six separate occasions between May of 1973, and June of 1974. They had involved, among other things, a garage, a fence, a carport, boat, truck and camper, and a grass fire (R. 482). After a number of visits to examine the aftermath of fires believed to have been caused by arson, without being able, from the evidence, to prove guilt, the Lieutenant was called to speak with "two witnesses" who informed him "they had observed Mrs. Gramme" set a fire (R. 488). After speaking with the County Attorney, who advised him to speak with the

grammes, he informed them, he said, on June 25, 1974, that they must obtain care for the Plaintiff or that the Department would file criminal charges against her (R. 489). Lieutenant Callister later confirmed that the Plaintiff was, pursuant to his instructions, receiving psychiatric care (R. 490). The fire in June of 1974, was the last one the Fire Department was called to investigate at the Plaintiff's home (R. 488). The Plaintiff, at the time, was admitted to the psychiatric ward at St. Mark's Hospital (R. 272).

On three or four occasions, windows were broken at Cortez Street (R. 202). The home was burglarized and jewelry was stolen. The Defendant's office was ransacked "two" or "three" times, and his papers and documents were thrown around (R. 203). The police, as distinguished from the Fire Department, came to the parties home at least two or three times (R. 204). All of the events described preceded the relationship of the Defendant with Mrs. Morecraft (R. 206).

The Plaintiff had used drugs, she said, regularly, since 1969. They cost her, over nine years, \$60.00 to \$70.00 per month, "sometimes more, sometimes less" (R. 207). The drugs included valium, Fiorinal and Diuril (R. 208), water pills, and also, Thorazine and Equamil (R. 291). The Plaintiff overdosed on drugs and when asked how often, responded as follows:

"Well, my husband told me every time I took those pills he took me down to the hospital, and I recall three or four times, maybe six times, I don't know. Maybe three or four or five times, I guess" (R. 209).

Some of the drug overdoses were, in reality, suicide attempts (R. 210), and of the twelve hospital admissions, for every purpose, surgical and psychological, from January of 1969, to September of 1975, all, again, were prior to the relationship of the Defendant with Sharon Morecraft (R. 211, Exhibit 37-D). Prior to the Defendant's friendship with Sharon Morecraft, in late 1975, the plaintiff admitted that she had never complained that her husband, Andre Gramme, was any part of her problem (R. 213-214). The psychiatrist noted on July 11, 1974, on the occasion of the plaintiff's tenth admission to St. Mark's Hospital, that her social history was "insignificant" (Exhibit 37-D, July 11, 1974 admission, emphasis supplied).

The plaintiff physically assaulted Sharon Morecraft at the airport (R. 231-232), in 1975 or 1976, beating her with a club she had brought from home, which was broken on Mrs. Morecraft's back (R. 232-235). The plaintiff admitted that the Defendant said "...he was scared of me," and that he slept in the bathroom, behind the locked door, "many, many, many times" (R. 236).

The plaintiff was accused of theft (R. 297) in Carmel, California, in early 1977, involving expensive

jewelry stolen from the home of Dr. and Mrs. Hall, who were friends. It was the Plaintiff who notified the police of a robbery, ostensibly in process. There were, again, broken windows, and the jewelry was found, after a search, in the plaintiff's Carmel home. The Plaintiff pled guilty to a misdemeanor and was placed on probation. She was on probation in California at the time of the trial (R. 297-303).

Testimony, Andre Gramme

The parties were married in July of 1946. Mrs. Gramme was first employed in late 1949 or early 1950 and last worked in 1967 (R. 409), when her income was \$1,352.85 (R. 412). She had no income in 1968, none since 1968, and worked sporadically, perhaps half the time, from 1949 to 1967 (R. 414-415).

The plaintiff left the Defendant, and her infant daughter, early in the marriage (R. 420), for some ten days for another man (R. 421). The Plaintiff, the Defendant said, had a bad temper and was both nervous and loud.

The plaintiff had, during the period of the marriage, and before 1969, "hundreds" of fainting incidents, which were, said the Defendant, "too numerous to count" (R. 421). The plaintiff would, the Defendant said, lapse to the floor or fall on a couch. The Defendant never knew the Plaintiff to fall against a piece of furniture, or to hurt herself, and she was never hospitalized by reason of the



incidents. The Defendant had never known such an event to occur when the Plaintiff was operating an appliance, in the bathtub (R. 422), in an automobile, or at any public place. No doctor ever found an explanation for such incidents, or for the variant that more nearly resembled a type of convulsion (R. 423). The incident in the witness box, during the trial, was the first such incident the Defendant ever observed to occur in a public place. After the Fire Department required the plaintiff to see a psychiatrist, there were, said the Defendant, no more convulsions (R. 424).

The plaintiff was a regular drug user, and began taking them as early as 1949 or 1950. They included sleeping pills and tranquilizers (R. 425). The use increased in number and variety after 1969 and those for which payment was made by check cost between \$60.00 and \$80.00 a month, from then until the time of trial. As early as 1970, the plaintiff overdosed, on one occasion after an argument with her father (R. 426). She did it on several subsequent occasions and was hospitalized. On several occasions her stomach was pumped at St. Mark's Hospital (R. 427).

The plaintiff, the Defendant testified, confined herself, for a number of years, to the consideration of her health. She stayed at home with the drapes pulled, the doors locked, the blinds drawn, failing to dress during the day and watching the soap operas on TV. She did not assist

in the business (R. 427-428), manage the household accounts (R. 467), keep or maintain the duplex and she was, the defendant testified, often up at night (R. 428).

The Plaintiff was not pleased with the home at Cortez and wanted to move to a larger home in Holladay (R. 429). She had wanted, she testified, to move from the duplex to a better place and she had discussed such a move with the Defendant over a period of many years (R. 170). There were, at Cortez, a "rash" of broken windows. On one occasion a detective asked the Defendant if the plaintiff would take a lie detector test. In connection with such events, the plaintiff suggested that the parties move, asserting that someone didn't like them and that they must have "enemies" (R. 430).

After one of the ransacking incidents at the home, the Defendant observed the plaintiff remove money from his wallet (R. 431). The Police Department came to the house in connection with the broken windows, and the ransackings, four or five times (R. 432). The plaintiff refused to take the lie detector test on the basis, she said, of medical advice (R. 432-433).

There were four separate fires in the home, at Cortez (R. 433). All began in the carport. The second occurred on the 4th of July when the Defendant went, over

objection, to a party without the plaintiff, who then called to inform him that the garage was on fire (R. 434).

The third incident involved the burning of a 1970 Pontiac. The Defendant was awakened by the Plaintiff who preceded him outside and who pulled from the gas tank, a rope or a rag that operated as a fuse (R. 435). The Defendant found matches at the scene and was told by the Plaintiff, who admitted they were there, that it was dark and that she had lit the matches to see what was going on. Before the fire, the Plaintiff had asked that the parties purchase another car, a request that the Defendant had refused (R. 437). The Fire Department investigated, and concluded that the fire was caused by arson (R. 437).

In 1973 or 1974, the plaintiff wanted to travel with her parents to Europe to visit an aunt who was dying (R. 437), and her parents refused to permit her to accompany them. During the trip, the father, Mr. Hasoppe, stored his boat at Cortez Street in the carport. The Defendant, one evening, waked, after an explosion, to find the boat on fire and his wife on the couch in the living room. The fire, which spread, engulfed the carport, a truck and its contents, items of storage, as well as the boat and all were destroyed or damaged, reflecting a total loss of approximately \$10,000.00 (R. 739), equivalent to the original cost for the construction of the entire duplex.

The Fire Department determined that the fire was caused by arson (R. 440). It was the fourth fire at the duplex on Cortez Street.

There were, in addition to the fires at the home of the parties, other fires in the neighborhood. Two of them involved fences, one a grapestake, between the home of neighbors to the north, the Knolte's, and the home of the parties to these proceedings (R. 441). One of them also involved a clutch of bamboo which the plaintiff had complained blew dry leaves on the parties' property in the late fall or early winter (R. 441-442). On another occasion the Defendant was awakened by the Fire Department which had extinguished a grass fire. It was at that time, that the setting of the fire, by the plaintiff, was witnessed by neighbors (R. 442). Later there was at the home of the Knolte's, the parents of one of the witnesses, though they no longer lived at the premises, also a fire (R. 443).

The parties were summoned to the Fire Department (R. 443) and told by the arson investigator that there was enough evidence to press charges against the plaintiff unless she had psychiatric treatment (R. 444). The Plaintiff was enrolled at the psychiatric ward at St. Mark's Hospital on two separate and subsequent occasions, once after an overdose (R. 445) on the request of Dr. Peterson, and once upon the request of the family physician, Dr. Dalrymple,

for a total period of approximately two weeks (R. 445-446). A second psychiatrist recommended a third commitment after the filing of the criminal charges in California, subsequent to the filing of this lawsuit. The Plaintiff refused to be admitted (R. 446-448).

The Defendant testified that the conduct of the plaintiff impaired their social relationships (R. 452). On one occasion, he found her in a closed garage, in the trunk of the car, with its motor running (R. 453). She was taken, again, to the emergency room at St. Mark's Hospital. Twice the Defendant found the Plaintiff standing over his bed with a knife in her hand (R. 454), and once he found her wandering around the house, after an argument, with a rifle, cocked, a shell in the chamber, and with the safety off (R. 455). The Defendant also testified that because he was afraid of the plaintiff, he would lock himself in the bathroom and sleep on the floor. He believed, he said, that the plaintiff was capable of physical violence (R. 456). He observed the Plaintiff hit Mrs. Morecraft with a broomstick, beat her with her hands and throw her luggage at the airport (R. 456). On a morning after the plaintiff had physically attempted to gain ingress to the Defendant's apartment, the Defendant was advised that a Corvair automobile driven by Mrs. Morecraft, had been damaged by someone who had apparently struck the vehicle with a rock, scratched

the paint, breaking the windshield and the glass on a side door (R. 456).

The relationship of the Defendant with Mrs. Morecraft was not, the Defendant testified, secret or clandestine (R. 458). The Defendant admitted he knew Sharon Morecraft, that he had a relationship with her which began in October of 1975 (R. 102) and that they had been to San Diego (R. 40), to San Carlos, Mexico, Mazatlan, Mexico and Carmel, California (R. 53) together (R. 41). He admitted that Mrs. Morecraft worked for him in his office (R. 42), that he had given her gifts, and had seen her frequently, both prior to and after his separation from the plaintiff (R. 46) in September of 1976 (R. 47). He stated that the plaintiff was in California quite a bit of the time, just prior to their separation (R. 49).

The plaintiff, the Defendant testified, was a poor manager of money; and, at times, during the period of her employment, her clothing purchases were virtually equivalent to her income. Her tastes were expensive (R. 469). After the separation of the parties, the plaintiff, though the recipient of adequate temporary alimony, failed to pay her bills in timely fashion, including telephone, garbage pickup, soft water, cable TV and water (R. 477).

## Financial Affairs

The Defendant, a masonry contractor, testified that all of his earnings from every source had come to rest in his personal assets, as reflected in the Exhibit, 34-D, (R. 105-106) and in the value of his corporation, which he testified was, as of December 31, 1976, \$120,000.00, and which, he testified, had diminished in view of his losses during the year 1977 (R. 501). The Defendant failed to answer several questions pertaining to his income, his purchases, and to the accumulations in his estate prior to 1977. He did so on the basis of the privilege against self incrimination. The questions and the objections are on the record at 85, 86, 89 and 90. The parties accountant, Mr. Bayes, who had, for many years, prepared their joint returns, testified that he knew of no other assets (R. 545), as did, essentially, the plaintiff. There were several items which the Defendant admitted in final argument (R. 621) might operate to increase the figure on Exhibit 34-D, slightly.<sup>1</sup> The Trial Court found the value of the personal assets to be \$439,200.00, and valued the Corporation at \$210,800.00 (Findings, R. at 124). That was some \$90,000.00 more than

---

1. Including \$1,700.00 for improvements at 1815 West 500 South, \$1,400.00 for the cash value of the policy of insurance with Northwestern, and a Datsun automobile valued at \$2,500.00. (See: Final Argument at 620-621.)

it was valued by its accountant (R. 555), or by the Defendant, without considering the losses incurred in the year 1977.

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