1978

Denise R. Gramme v. Andre Gramme : Respondent's Brief

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT UNDERSTOOD AND PROPERLY APPLIED THE LAW TO THE FACTS OF THIS CASE.

The Defendant-Appellant, in his Brief, cites the record, specifically the dialogue between the Trial Court and Defendant's Counsel and alleges certain facts not in the record which transpired in chambers to support his position that the Trial Court failed to consider the misconduct of the wife or the relative guilt or innocence of the parties in making the award of alimony. However, it is essential to point out that the Trial Court's statements and comments on the record were made in the framework of the Defendant's position that the Plaintiff had, by her conduct, forfeited her right to alimony. Although the Defendant's Counsel mentioned relative guilt or innocence in his statements, the Court's statements were not directed to the element of relative guilt, but were directed toward the theory of forfeiture.

After the Trial Court sustained Plaintiff's objection to Defendant's question to the Plaintiff concerning events that occurred in the hospital, the following dialogue between Defendant's Counsel and the Court transpired:

THE COURT: All right. Suppose you show the attack. (R. 240)

MR. ALLRED: Excuse me. (R. 240)

THE COURT: Suppose you show that. What then? What does it prove so far as this case is concerned? (R. 240)

MR. ALLRED: The conduct of the wife, Your Honor, the misconduct of the wife. (R. 240).

THE COURT: Objection is sustained. You see, we can go into all sorts of peripheral things. We have gone back now 20 or 30 years, and I'm not sure what you are claiming for all of that. (R. 241) (Emphasis added).

At this point the Court was concerned about the relevance of matters peripheral to the issues that were before the Court. Further on in the dialogue between Defendant's Counsel and the Court, Defendant's theory of a forfeiture surfaced in the following exchange:

THE COURT: So what you are saying is old misconduct affects the amount of alimony. (R. 242)

MR. ALLRED: I am saying that what it does is to alleviate the presumption that was raised by the---not a presumption, it doesn't rise to that point, but the really basic principle of the Alldredge case is that alimony will, in most cases, be denied if the wife is guilty of gross or prolonged immoral conduct. And I'm saying that I am attempting to establish that the mitigating circumstance which the Court provided for in the Alldredge case does not exist in this circumstance because the misconduct is of long origin. (R. 242) (Emphasis added).

THE COURT: That is the position you are taking in this case? (R. 242) (Emphasis added).

MR. ALLRED: That is a position that I am taking in this case
Your Honor. (R. 242) (Emphasis added).

And further during the dialogue, the following transpired:

MR. ALLRED: (Referring to the Alldredge case) It has been
widely nationally cited, and I think that is the case
of McDonald vs. McDonald, and also the case of
Anderson vs. Anderson, where the Court, speaking per curiam, talks about the
importance of testimony pertaining to relative
guilt or innocence of the parties. (R. 244)

THE COURT: As it goes to effect a denial of alimony?
(Emphasis added).

MR. ALLRED: As it goes to effect a denial of alimony, or
goes to effect the amount of awarded alimony,
your Honor, both. (R. 245).

MR. ALLRED: ...and that case is cited at Amjur, your Honor,
this proposition: 'It has been held that in con-
sidering the equities upon granting a divorce,
the husband, if the Court finds that the wife
has been guilty of gross or prolonged immoral con-
duct, then an award of alimony to the wife
should be denied in most cases.'

That represents the central position taken in the
Alldredge case. (R. 250)

THE COURT: What do you suppose the language "gross or
prolonged immoral conduct" means? (R. 251)

MR. ALLRED: Excuse me? (R. 250).

THE COURT: What do you support the language "gross or
prolonged immoral conduct" means? (R. 251)

MR. ALLRED: ...I am saying that relative guilt or innocence
of the parties is one of a number of factors
considered by the Court. I am saying that the
wife is guilty of prolonged immoral misconduct
that she may be subject to a forfeiture as for
alimony is concerned. (R. 255) (Emphasis added)

THE COURT: Even though her needs and abilities of both parties might require something different but for that prolonged and immoral misconduct? (R. 255).

MR. ALLRED: Well, Your Honor, I'm not saying that should necessarily be the case, but I'm saying that the Court has the power to consider the misconduct of the wife as an element respecting a total forfeiture, or the Court has the power to take the position that if misconduct of the wife is serious and prolonged that it can be a partial forfeiture. (R. 255)

THE COURT: Of course, in Aldrich v. Aldrich, when the Court was looking at that question, they said the wife shall have alimony in this case. (R. 256)

MR. ALLRED: That's perfectly clear. (R. 256)

THE COURT: All right. But you see, you are throwing some terms out and you are saying they don't mean what they appear to mean. By "grossly prolonged immoral conduct or misconduct", can you point to any case where the Court has denied alimony for gross or prolonged immoral conduct where the conduct is of the nature that you are alluding to here? (R. 256) (Emphasis added).

MR. ALLRED: Yes, I can. McDonald v. McDonald (R. 256).

Further in the dialogue, the Court asked Defendant's Counsel to make a proffer of proof as to what his evidence would show and the proffer of proof was made at R. 260, at which point the Court stated:

THE COURT: Are you claiming that the conduct in the hospital is evidence of gross or prolonged immoral conduct? (R. 260)

MR. ALLRED: Am I claiming that? I think it relates to the conduct of Mrs. Gramme during the period of the marriage. (R. 261).

THE COURT: I didn't lay down what the rules were, and I'm just quoting the language that you quote from the cases, and that is "gross or prolonged immoral conduct". It's not just an act of conduct, it's not just grossly prolonged conduct, it's grossly prolonged immoral conduct. And that's the adjective that is used to modify the word "conduct". It is immoral conduct.

Is it your contention that that conduct up to now constitutes gross immoral conduct? (R. 263)

MR. ALLRED: ... Your Honor, you must understand something too: My client isn't here trying to avoid his responsibilities. You must simply understand that we are trying to put this in a decent way that there is legal principle that permits a forfeiture under circumstances where the court finds-- Okay. (R. 263) (Emphasis added).

THE COURT: And that's what he is asserting, is that by virtue of this conduct during the course of the marriage she ought to be deemed to have forfeited her right to support for the remainder of her life? (R. 263) (Emphasis added).

THE COURT: If that is not your position, then, why are you going through this? (R. 263)

THE COURT: That was not what I was asking. I want to know why you are here asserting a position that constitutes total forfeiture. That's what you are asserting. (R. 264) (Emphasis added).

Defendant's Counsel summarized his position to the Trial Court with respect to his theory of forfeiture at P. 266 of the Record; however, Defendant in his summation failed to mention the issue of relative guilt but spoke solely concerning his theory of forfeiture with respect to the relevance of the evidence he was trying to introduce.

As is set forth in the above dialogue, the context in which the Trial Court made its statements concerned the Defendant's position that Plaintiff, because of her conduct, had forfeited her right to alimony. The issue of relative guilt or innocence as bearing on an award of alimony was not directly raised in that dialogue and the Trial Court at no point in the record stated that relative guilt or innocence of the parties in causing the break up of the marriage was not a factor to be considered by the Trial Court. In addition, Appellant in his Brief has chosen to submit facts to this Court not in the record:

"In that dialogue, the Court said, indirectly on the record what it had said, more directly, in chambers. Alimony, the Court reasoned, was to be determined with reference to the economic factors and was, in the instant case, in its entirety, an economic judgment." (Appellant's Brief, p. 20).

Although Plaintiff submits that the reference to facts off the record may be improper, Plaintiff is compelled to respond to such a statement.

Plaintiff's Counsel has no recollection of the Trial Court having stated in Chambers that relative guilt was not to be considered or that the Trial Court's decision would be based solely on economic considerations and Plaintiff submits that the dialogue in the chambers, again, solely involved Defendant's theory of forfeiture.

Plaintiff readily concedes that the relative guilt or innocence of the parties in causing a break up of the marriage was a factor to be considered by the Trial Court. In fact, during the trial of this matter, the

Plaintiff cited the cases of Wilson v. Wilson, 5 Ut.2d, 79, 296 P.2d 697, and Searle v. Searle (Utah, 1974) 522 P.2d 697, for the proposition that guilt or innocence was, indeed, a factor that the Court may consider in rendering its decision. (R. 524).

It is important to note that at the point in time, during the trial when the dialogue transpired between the Trial Court and Defendant's Counsel relative to Defendant's theory of forfeiture, the Trial Court had already heard the testimony of the Defendant himself concerning his marriage involving Sharon Morecroft, and the Court had properly concluded at that point in time that this case was distinguishable from Allredge v. Allredge, 119 Utah 504, 229 P.2d 681, wherein the wife alone was guilty of misconduct. The facts before the Trial Court at that time clearly indicated that guilt may lie with both parties as was the situation in English v. English (Utah) 565 P.2d 409, cited by the Trial Court, wherein both of the parties were granted the divorce.

The Defendant in his Brief assumes that the principle of forfeiture discussed in Allredge v. Allredge applies to the instant case. During the trial of this matter, Defendant took the position that Plaintiff's conduct should result in a total forfeiture of alimony. (See for example Defendant's Exhibit 67). Again, in this appeal, the Defendant is, in effect, asking the Court for a total forfeiture, without considering all of the facts and circumstances present. This Court has stated on many occasions that it

firm rule can be uniformly applied in all divorce cases, and each case must be determined on the basis of the immediate fact situation before the Court. Wilson v. Wilson, 5 Ut.2d 79, 296 P.2d 977 (1956). Even the Court in Allredge applied this flexible standard to the facts and circumstances of that case. In Allredge, the Court concluded that the facts and circumstances presented to the Court did not warrant applying the theory of forfeiture that was discussed therein. Likewise, the facts and circumstances of the instant case do not justify a forfeiture as urged by the Defendant. In the Allredge case, the Plaintiff (husband) who was 64 years of age, was granted the divorce against the Defendant (wife), who was 53 years of age. All of the property that the parties owned consisted of a home and \$400.00 in a bank account. Plaintiff had a monthly income from labor of approximately \$200.00. The Supreme Court concluded that the wife's conduct did not rise to the level of gross or prolonged immoral conduct. However, the Court also acknowledged the flexible standard that is to be applied in all divorce cases wherein it stated:

The nature of the misconduct of the wife is for consideration as an aid to judicial discretion in deciding whether the wife should have alimony on divorce, and, if so, the amount thereof. Other considerations, such as years of living and toiling together... interruptions of this way of life by disabilities not the fault of either party. . . . become a part of the picture to be viewed as a whole in deciding the best thing to be done. Allredge v. Allredge, 119 Utah 504, 229 P.2d 681 (Emphasis added).

In the Allredge case, the other considerations which the Court considered were: The Defendant had no skills which she could apply in

order to make herself a living; there was no evidence that the wife had separate income and she was 53 years of age, and it seemed likely that she would not be able to support herself. There was evidence that the wife was in ill health. Many of these same factors are present in the instant case. Considering all of the factors, the Court in Allredge concluded that the wife was entitled to alimony.

It is submitted that the Allredge case in its essence represents the standards which have long since been applied to divorce cases in this State, that is, misconduct, together with all the facts and circumstances of the case are to be considered by the Court. In the instant case, as hereinabove mentioned, it is critical to note that Plaintiff (wife) was awarded the divorce as well as the Defendant and that her conduct cannot be isolated and viewed in terms of the language of the Allredge case wherein the husband alone was awarded the divorce. The conduct of the Plaintiff must be considered in light of the conduct of the Defendant. In other words, the relative guilt or innocence of the parties in causing a break up of the marriage

An examination of the facts relevant to the issue of the relative guilt or innocence of the parties in causing a break up of the marriage is set forth in the following:

The Defendant blamed the fires that occurred at the residence on Cortez Street, on the Plaintiff and to support this position, Dean Callister testified that there was enough evidence to file charges against Plaintiff.

(R. 489). However, Plaintiff denied that she was responsible for any of the fires. (R. 200). It is also important to note that according to the testimony of Dean Callister, the fires occurred over a relatively short period considering the length of the marriage, that is, for approximately a 13-month period between May, 1973, and June, 1974. (R. 488). The last fire occurred almost two and a half years before the parties separated. (R. 45).

The Defendant blamed Plaintiff for the burglaries occurring in their own residence. (R. 432). However, under cross examination, Defendant admitted that after the home was burglarized in which the guns and jewelry were taken, that he hired a private investigator and as a result, a person named Bob West was arrested for the burglaries and he admitted having burglarized the home. (R. 503, 504).

Prior to the Plaintiff's surgery for breast cancer in 1969 (Exhibit 37-D), the Defendant testified that the difficulties he had experienced in the marriage were the Plaintiff's fainting, the untruths, the bickering with the family. (R. 505).

The Defendant in his Statement of Facts states: "The Plaintiff was a regular drug user and began taking them as early as 1949 or 1950. They included sleeping pills and tranquilizers." (Appellant's Brief, page 10).

The specific testimony from which Defendant arrives at that statement is as follows:

- MR. ALLRED: What can you tell us, Mr. Gramme, about when the use of drugs began and what it consisted of through the years.
- MR. GRAMME: Well, at the earliest stages, she took, I believe, mostly sleeping pills, Sominex, type of thing. (Emphasis added).
- MR. ALLRED: How long ago did that begin?
- MR. GRAMME: Oh, as far as back as I can remember, 1953.
- MR. ALLRED: Okay, will you describe then how that manifested itself over the years?
- MR. GRAMME: Well, I don't know exactly what she was taking before her operation, but I know she was taking some type of tranquilizer. I never did know what it was, but I know she took it that deeply. Then after her operation she took some tranquilizers prescribed to her by her doctor and her doctor, and subsequently by a psychiatrist. She took many, 4 or 5 other types. I don't know what they are, but I just became alarmed when she took overdoses of it. (R. 426) (Emphasis added).

On the other hand, the Plaintiff testified that the marriage was not happy until she was stricken with cancer. (R. 164, 165). Plaintiff also testified that she had never taken sleeping pills except in the hospital. (R. 208). Dr. Peterson testified that Plaintiff had shown no hints of drug abuse or addiction (R. 577), and that a cost of \$60.00 to \$80.00 a month for her medication was not excessive for an individual such as Plaintiff requiring such medication. (R. 587).

Dr. Peterson further testified that the Plaintiff had a difficult time adjusting to the bilateral mastectomies (R. 576), and that he had had

opportunity to observe Mrs. Gramme's fainting spells and that it was his opinion that the seizures were caused by intense emotional anxiety and were not feigned in any way. (R. 576, 577).

The Defendant further testified that Plaintiff has threatened him with a knife and at times he slept in the bathroom (R. 454). However, the Defendant admitted that the times he slept in the bathroom because of insecurity were after he had started his relationship with Sharon Morecroft (R. 454, 455).

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